
MEETING MINUTES 
SOUTH GULF COVE BEAUTIFICATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

February 24, 2015 – Regular Meeting 
1:30 PM – San Casa Conference Room 

 
Attendees:  Bob Dratch, Barbara Hundley, Carol McGuire, Roseann Phillips, Karen Price, and Sandy Slater  
  
County:  John Elias, Mike Dallenbach, Karly Greene, Francine Lisby, Kelly Louttit, Judith Nothdurft, and 

Gregg O’Connor 
 
Guests:  Sign-in sheet attached  
 
The meeting was called to order at 1:30 p.m. A roll call was taken that established a quorum was present.  
 
• Linear Park (Bob) - Mangrove Permit, Flow Sensor, Cattails, Boardwalk - Mr. Dratch noted a meeting was 

held at the Linear Park on February 5, 2015, listed members in attendance, commented on discussions held 
and questions posed, mentioned mangroves cannot be trimmed lower than 6 feet and if trimmed higher, 
must not have 25% of the tree removed, spoke to grandfathered sections, detailed alteration permits, 
highlighted mitigation constraints, stated his belief that an alteration permit could be sought for Linear Park, 
explained the Little Pine Island Mitigation Bank and requirements for mitigation, said mitigation costs of 
$125,000 would be required for creating one square acre of pristine mangrove, and described several 
alternatives for mangrove trimming. Mr. Elias commented on costs for the permitting process. Ms. Slater 
noted the view of the Lagoon has been sought since the inception of the MSBU Committee and expressed 
her belief that a return on investment has not been seen. Mr. Elias spoke and indicated if a window of 
mangrove was completely removed; erosion control would be necessary. Mr. Dratch noted the Committee 
should decide how much mangrove should be trimmed and suggested an Environmental Engineering Firm 
be acquired to research costs. Mr. O’Connor advised of the RLI process. Mr. Elias agreed an experienced 
firm should be hired to commence and complete the project. Ms. Price thanked Mr. Dratch and Mr. Hagen 
for their work with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), questioned if any indication 
was received related to the 500 foot window option, inquired if the permit was received if an additional permit 
could be applied for in future years, and confirmed she was in favor of trimming the mangroves to 4 feet. Mr. 
Dratch affirmed the permit is good for 5 years and stated additional permits could be applied for or amended 
in the future. Ms. Price motioned to hire an Engineering Firm to begin investigation of the mitigation process 
of Linear Park, seconded by Ms. McGuire. Mr. Elias noted that one firm was to be sought for consulting and 
construction. Ms. Price amended her motion to include one firm for design and implementation, seconded by 
Ms. Slater. Discussion continued. Ms. Lisby stated FY 15 had $16,000.00 budgeted and discussion ensued. 
The motion passed unanimously.  
 

The minutes from December 10, 2014 were unanimously approved as amended (the December 2014 draft 5 
year plan) and January 14, 2015 were unanimously approved as written.  
 
Citizen Input on Agenda Items Only (3 Minute Limit) 
 
• Melport Park – Clear 1.49 Acres – Roxanne Austin  indicated she represents the 24 homes on Melport 

Circle, provided details of those homes, noted the Melport Mini Park, noted the request to have the area 
cleared, explained there is illegal dumping in the area, stated she has walked the property several times, 
expressed her preference for some palms to be saved, asked that all other plants be finely mulched, 
mentioned the two resident dissenting petition votes and reasons, requested the Committee support the area 
to be cleared, and asked that if the area cannot be cleared via the MSBU that she be given the authority to 
clear the area herself. Ms. Slater noted the West County Mowing provided an estimate to clear the area in 
the amount of $1,800.00, indicated the contractor has already provided the permit application, and asked 
that the Committee discuss the matter. Mr. Elias asked if the area was park property. Ms. Slater advised the 
area was designated as park property. Mr. Elias indicated there may be permitting requirements, stated 
there is an existing contractor who performs this type of work, noted he requested additional information of 
Mr. Vowell, commented on existing contracts, and affirmed he would get the prices to provide to the 
Committee. There was discussion related to existing Memorandum of Agreements and maintenance 
requirements. Ms. Slater noted a contract modification may be required to mow the Park and noted an 
estimate could be requested of Jim Yelverton. Discussion continued related to the intent of the development 
of the park plan and MSBU funds expended on mini parks.  
 

• John Robinson indicated he was neither for or against the park, questioned the procedure and process for 
implementation, noted the Mini Park was not an idea generated by the MSBU, spoke to precedents being 
set, commented that a lot of projects are being done for Section 93, inquired of liability, commented on 
estimates received and County costs, spoke to maintenance costs, and suggested the matter be closely 
reviewed. Ms. Slater pointed out County parks are open to all.  
 



• Ken Simeone indicated he was in favor of the mini park project.  Ms. Lisby explained $155,000 was available 
in FY 15/16, indicated the amount was lowered, per the Committee’s request in the following year and 
commented on non-budgeted items for FY 15. There was discussion of the annual contract costs, available 
funding, and modification of the 2 year budget.  Mr. Elias noted the estimate received for Environ-clear was 
$2,451.00, explained the bidding process. Ms. Price motioned to table the discussion of Melport Circle, 
seconded by Ms. McGuire. The Committee agreed.   

 
Unfinished Business: 
• San Domingo Park (Karen) – Flexi-pave color selection, exercise equipment, picnic table top – Ms. Price 

indicated the flex-pave was not available in the color chosen, stated the Committee needed to choose 
another color, and questioned what the up charge is for. Discussion continued related to complaints received 
on the balance beam. Ms. Price noted the Park is still not complete. Discussion ensued regarding color 
choice. Ms. Price motioned to have the contractor order the cypress color for park completion, seconded by 
Mr. Dratch. Mr. Elias affirmed he would follow up on mobilization costs. The motion passed unanimously.  
Mr. Simeone noted he has driven by the Park every day, commented on damage to the park by the heavy 
equipment, stated the equipment is not ready for use, indicated the sit up station is not plumb, and 
expressed his displeasure with the overall progress. Mr. Elias noted the contract would be monitored. Ms. 
Price stated she has not received an update regarding the cracked picnic table top. Ms. Nothdurft affirmed 
that an update was not yet available. Ms. Slater explained her meeting with Dan Quick on January 23, 2015 
with the purpose of the process for San Domingo Park completion, noted Mr. Quick suggested approaching 
the project through a design-build process, stated the design has already been completed and only needs to 
be updated, mentioned Mr. Elias agreed to contact David M. Jones Engineering. Mr. Elias indicated he 
informed Mr. O’Connor to contact CH Construction that the Committee agreed upon the Cypress color and 
to indicate demobilization should not be required. Mr. Elias mentioned David M. Jones drawings may be  a 
conceptual design, explained his concern that the issue relates to Facilities type work, and noted he was 
instructed by Mr. Quick to review the issue with the County Attorney’s Office. Ms. Slater questioned if she 
could meet with the County Attorney Janette Knowlton. Discussion continued. Mr. Elias stated he would 
provide an update as one is received.  Ms. Slater noted Mr. Quick requested a representative from the 
Committee to be a conduit with the contractor.  
 

• Linear Park (Bob)  - Mr. Dratch expressed his belief that the contractor is overcharging for the solar irrigation 
flow sensor, stated the price quote was $4,735, noted his attempts to receive additional information related 
to the solar system, discussion within committee about which contractors they are bound to use. Mr. Elias 
advised he will check with Purchasing on contractor issues. The Committee questioned why the quote was 
obtained from the County-wide Irrigation Contractor rather than the SGC Beautification Landscape 
Contractor. Mr. Dratch indicated more information on the cattail treatment was to be requested from Johnny 
Hunter and no update has been received. Ms. Nothdurft provided information related to the matter and will 
follow-up. Mr. Elias affirmed the matter would be looked into. Ms. Slater noted Waterways has paid for cattail 
spraying in the past and requested that the cattails be sprayed. Ms. Lisby conveyed the Waterways MSBU 
noted the cattails do not affect navigation at their MSBU meeting. Ms. Nothdurft clarified previously sprayed 
cattails impeded navigation. Ms. Nothdurft stated there was not an update related to the Boardwalk.  
 

• Learning Garden (Carol) – Ms. McGuire noted a monthly statement was received, indicated fertilizer was 
applied, and questioned the location of where the fertilizer was applied. Mr. Dratch stated fertilizer should 
have been applied to everything per the contract.  

 
• Entryways (Sandy/Karen) – Appleton Water Bill – Ms. Price noted she has not received any additional 

information from CCU. Mr. Dallenbach indicated he walked the entire area and did not see any leaks.  
 

• McAllister Park – Property Exchange – Ms. Nothdurft has made initial contact with Real Estate Services and 
will follow-up.  

 
• Landscape Contract – Monthly Reporting Process – Ms. Slater noted the report was received and stated 

they should not delay payment to the Contractor, and suggested a timeframe be set. Mr. Dratch questioned 
who has oversight over the payment. Mr. Elias affirmed the County is responsible and spoke to the payment 
process. Mr. Elias indicated he will have Mr. O’Connor provide the original email to the Contractor to the 
Committee. Ms. Slater asked if Mr. Yelverton could be contacted to make a note related to fertilizer. There 
was additional discussion related to listing specifics of the Learning Garden and invoice approval. Mr. Dratch 
noted he has taken the Invoice details and placed them into a spreadsheet to compare to the Landscape 
Contract schedule of work.  



 
• Pathway Landscape – Construction Cost – Ms. Slater provided detail. Mr. Dratch noted the item was 

unbudgeted. Ms. Slater explained additional detail related to the seating area. Ms. Lisby provided new 
budgets to the Committee and noted the $9,000.00 is not encumbered through this MSBU. Mr. Paine 
questioned if a bill was received for Johnson Engineering. Ms. Lisby listed two charges that have been made 
to the MSBU to date. Discussion ensued. Ms. Lisby affirmed a correction would be made if there was an 
error in billing for Johnson Engineering. Mr. Dratch questioned if the $9,000.00 was for design. Ms. Nothdurft 
affirmed.  

 
• Final FY 2016 & FY 2017 Budget Review - Ms. Lisby listed expenses adding up to $62,300.00. Ms. Slater 

questioned carried forward amounts. Ms. Lisby noted increases to the exercise equipment. Discussion 
continued related to budget amounts. Ms. Lisby indicated the San Domingo budget was adjusted, noted the 
picnic table covers, gazebo and dance area and additional benches were included in FY16. Ms. McGuire 
questioned where the restrooms were placed. Ms. Lisby responded that the restrooms were placed into 
FY17. There was additional conversation related to budgeted amounts within the CIP. Ms. Lisby requested 
guidance related to the MSBU Committee Budget and provided specific detail for each budgeted line item. 
Ms. Slater inquired what was included for FY 17. Ms. Lisby responded that monies were budgeted for Santa 
Lucia and could be used for Pathway Landscaping. Discussion continued related to listing specifics for 
budgeted line items. Ms. Lisby affirmed she would check into the approximately $10,000.00 that is not 
included in the MSBU Financials and she would change the $50,000.00 to CS Other in FY16. Mr. Elias 
noted the design and construction could be phased for the San Domingo Park. Mr. Dratch noted he would 
switch the gazebo and restroom. Ms. Lisby affirmed she would do so. Ms. Slater questioned reserve 
balances.  

 
New Business: 
• Financial History / 3 Month Actual FY 2014-15 – The report was provided for Committee review.  

 
• Activity Report (12/1/14 – 1/31/15) – The report was provided for Committee review.  
 
Open Discussion: 
• Ms. Slater requested the Committee discuss the Melport Circle issue presented earlier in the meeting. There 

was discussion of varying estimates. Mr. Dallenbach explained change orders cannot be made to include 
different types of work when a yearly contract already exists. Discussion continued related to illegal dumping 
removal costs, possibly problems that agreeing for work could cause, and County liability. Ms. Slater 
motioned to clearing the property through mulching and removing trash debris as requested by the 
community, seconded by Ms. McGuire. Ms. Phillips questioned if there was enough money to conduct work 
in all other parks. Mr. Dratch noted it was on the list of priorities. The motion was denied with a 3 to 2 vote. 
Ms. Slater advised she would provide the community an update.  
 

Citizen Input on MSBU Related Items (3 Minute Limit) 
•  Mr. Paine indicated the next phase of pathways is moving forward in the next fiscal year, noted the location 

is not yet known, listed options, commented on issues relating to the Ingraham Bridge, stated an Engineer 
has not yet been hired, and mentioned his question related to plans for irrigation on 771. Mr. Elias 
responded there are no plans for irrigation at this time.  

 
The next meeting was scheduled for April 29, 2015 at 9:00 a.m. in the Building Construction Services 
Conference Room.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 4:58 p.m. 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Kelly Louttit 
Public Works Department 

louttitk
Pencil




